
 

 

AGENDA 
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MONDAY, MAY 20, 2024 
7:00 P.M. 

  
The Board Meeting for Monday May 20, 2024 will be held at Park View School, Library, 
6200 Lake Street, Morton Grove, Illinois 60053. 
  

1.     Call to Order 
  

2.     Roll Call 
  

3.     Pledge of Allegiance 
  

4.     Audience to Visitors 
  

5.     Approval of Minutes 
A)   Regular Meeting – April, 2024 (page 3) 

  
6.     Approval of Bills 

A)   Deposits to Treasurer – April, 2024 
B)   Accounts Payable – April, 2024 

 
                  7.   Superintendent Report 
  

8.     Treasurer’s/Business Report (page 9) 
  

9.     Education Report 
  

10.  Special Education Report (page 10) 
  

11.  Informational Items 
A)   Enrollment Report (page 12) 
B)   Lunch Report (page 14) 
C)   FOIA Requests (page 16) 

          
12.  Action Items 

     A) Approval of Policies – 2nd Reading (page 17) 
     B) Approval of  Student Fees for FY25 (page 50) 
     C) Approval of Consolidated District Plan for FY25 (page 51) 
     D) Approval of Membership Participation Agreement with the Illinois 
     Energy Consortium – Natural Gas Supply & Energy Supply (page 54) 
     E) Approval of Board Meeting Dates 24/25 (page 57) 
     F) Approval of Retirement – Food Service Director (page 59) 
     G) Approval of Leave of Absence-LBS (page 61) 
     H) Approval of Resignation-Psychologist (page 63) 



 

 

     I) Approval of Resignation-Recess Supervisor (page 65) 
                             J) Approval of New Hire – Middle School Math (page 66) 

    K) Approval of New Hire – Kindergarten (page 67) 
    L) Approval of New Hire – 4th Grade (page 68) 
   M) Approval of New Hire – EL Teacher (page 69) 
    N) Approval of New Hire – LBS (SPED) (page 70)   

 
        13.  Old Business 

 
14.  New Business 

       
15. Audience to Visitors 
 
16. Move to Closed Session- The appointment, employment, compensation, 
discipline, performance, or dismissal or specific employees of the public body 
or legal counsel for the public body, including hearing testimony on a 
complaint lodged against an employee of the public body or against legal 
counsel for the public body to determine its validity. However, a meeting to 
consider an increase in compensation to a specific employee of a public body 
that is subject to the Local Government Wage Increase Transparency Act may 
not be closed an shall be open to the public and held in accordance with this 
Act. 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1). 
 
17. Return to Open Session 
 
18. Adjournment 

 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF  

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 70 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
April 15, 2024 

 
The Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. with the following members present: 

 
George Karagozian 

Paul Torres 
Pamela Alper 
Kate Pichon 

Jeremy Wilson 
Claudia Popielarczyk 

Mark Thannert  
Absent: 

Kate Pichon 
 

Erin Majchrowski, Director of Business Services; John Wawczak, Principal; Nicole Cardillo-
Kerr, Director of Curriculum and Professional Learning; Katie McKee, Student Services 
Coordinator; Mark Schwarz, Assistant Principal; Alana McCloskey, District Data Manager; Jill 
Brocar, Board Secretary; and Matt Condon, Superintendent were in attendance. The following 
staff members were also in attendance: Cheryl Menke, Nikki Thanas, Sarah Girioni, Chrissy 
Botten, Kelli Murphy, Vera Ratner, Fran Timmers, Jenny Miller, Marci Heymann, Maggie 
LoBue, Jody Friman, Laurie Katz, and Michelle Brodsky. The following community members 
were also in attendance; Kristy & Ninous Chalabi, Christina Finnegan, Amy Dexl, Amber 
Gonzalez, Jamie Arena, Roćio Píńa, and Brittany Waldron. The following were also in 
attendance Alan Armbrust from STR Partners and Elizabeth Hennessy from Raymond James. 
 
Audience To Visitors 
 
The following community members made statements: 
Roćio Pińa 
Brittany Waldron 

 
Approval of Minutes, Regular Meeting 3/18/2024 
 
Copies of the minutes from the Regular Board of Education Meeting on March 18, 2024, were 
included in the Board Packet. A motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by 
Member Torres to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on March 18, 2024. 
 
Roll Call: Members Karagozian, Alper, Thannert, Torres, Popielarczyk, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 



Approval of Deposits 
 
A motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member Torres to approve the 
deposits for the month of March 2024. 
 
 Preschool Tuition   $11,700.00 
 Student Lunch    $11,372.86 
 Adult Lunch           $36.25 
 School Fess                 $1,496.00 
 School Maintenance Grant             $50,000.00 
 Taxi Reimbursement                               $460.00 

Other Reimbursements       $754.68 
 
TOTAL    $75,819.79 
 

Roll Call: Members Alper, Karagozian, Torres, Thannert, Popielarczyk, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 
Approval of Payables 
 
A motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member Torres to approve the 
payables for the month of March  2024. 
 
 Fund 10 – Education              $48,586.30 
 Fund 20 – O & M    $43,508.81 
 Fund 40 – Transportation           $106,965.56 
 Fund 60 – Capital Projects           $144,046.91 
 
 TOTAL             $343,107.78 
 
Roll Call: Members Karagozian, Alper, Thannert, Torres, Popielarczyk, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 
Treasurer’s and Business Report 
 
Director of Business Services, Erin Majchrowski, presented the Treasurer’s Report.  
 
Education Report 
 
Mrs. Kerr shared the following information: 

• Early release update-Collaborative Scoring Guide, Flashback/Flashforward protocol, 
promise standards 

• Finalizing teacher led PD on April 25th 
• Year-end review of protocols 
• Staffing survey update 

 



Mr. Wawczak provided updates on the following: 
• IAR testing is complete 
• Shout out to staff and students for cooperation during testing(Quiet in halls, flexibility, 

etc.) 
• ISA(Illinois Science Assessment) for 5th & 8th grade students will begin on April 17th 
• Interviews for open positions taking place with several staff members included as well as 

budling tours given by students 
• Niles West visit on 4/23, with our 8th grade students during their Flex period to promote 

athletics at the high school. The last visit will be from the Deans, and is scheduled for 
May 

• Field Day is scheduled for May 17th  
• Parent Teacher Conferences will take place on Friday, 4/26, by invite only 
• School musical evening performances will be on May 1st & 2nd at 7:00pm. Thanks to Ms. 

Flaubert and Ms. Starwalt who have been working hard with the cast and crew 
• Grade 8 held an impromptu car wash on April 14th with about 30 students in attendance 

and raised over $1,300 towards their end of year activities 
• Students and staff were able to view the Solar Eclipse and did a wonderful job following 

instructions and great conversations when it was complete 
 
Mr. Schwarz shared the following information: 

• Grade 7 students will be going to Springfield on Friday, April 19,2024. He will be on the 
trip along with 9 teachers 

 
Special Education Report 
 
Mrs. Alper shared the following from the NTDSE meeting held on 4/11/2024: 

• Preparing for ESY-Molloy students will be at Molloy, District 74 will host satellite class 
students 

• Staffing projections for next year 
 
Superintendent Report 
 
Mr. Condon shared the following information: 

• Water main project will hopefully be completed by end of April. Worksite has been safe 
and we have had no issues during construction 

• Verkada cameras have been installed and are a good addition to the building safety 
• Will be attending NIU career fair in May to possibly recruit candidates 
• Union bargaining continues  
• Warrior Legacy Scholarship- Monetary donation. “How are they living the Warrior 

Way”, donating time, being good citizens. Open to PV graduates or seniors.  
• Faculty recognition dinner will be May 10th  

 
 
 



Informational Items 
 
Enrollment Report 
 
There were 880 students enrolled as of March 2024. 
 
Lunch Report 
 
There were 5129 lunches sold in March 2024. 
 
FOIA Requests 
 
There were no FOIA requests for March 2024. 
 
Policy Review 
 
First reading of policies attached in Board packet. 
 
Potential Expansion  
 
Alan Armbrust from STR Partners and Elizabeth Hennessy from Raymond James presented on 
the potential expansion of the building. 
 
Action Items 
 
Approval of Transportation Contract 
 
A motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member Wilson to approve the 
transportation contract extension with First Student for the 2024-2025 school year. 
 
Roll Call: Members Alper, Karagozian, Thannert, Torres, Popielarczyk, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 
Approval of Chiller Installation Bid 
 
A motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member Wilson to approve the 
chiller installation to Oak Brook Mechanical in the amount of $447,700. 
 
Roll Call: Members Karagozian, Alper, Thannert, Torres, Popielarczyk, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Approval of Proposed Staffing Plan for 2024-2025 
 
A motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member Alper to approve the 
proposed staffing plan for the 2024-2025 school year. 
 
Roll Call: Members Karagozian, Alper, Thannert, Torres, Popielarczyk, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 
Approval of New Hire-Social Worker 
 
A motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member Wilson to approve the 
hiring of Vera Ratner for the 2024-2025 school year. 
 
Roll Call: Members Karagozian, Alper, Thannert, Torres, Popielarczyk, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 
Approval of FTE Change-Social Worker 
 
A motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member Alper to approve the FTE 
change for Brittany Graber for the 2024-2025 school year. 
 
Roll Call: Members Karagozian, Alper, Thannert, Torres, Popielarczyk, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 
Approval of New Hire-Speech Pathologist 
 
A motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member Torres to approve the 
hiring of Margaret Cullen-Conway for the 2024-2025 school year. 
 
Roll Call: Members Karagozian, Alper, Thannert, Torres, Popielarczyk, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 
Approval of Employee Resignations 
 
-A motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member Thannert to approve the 
resignation of Sydney Starwalt effective May 30, 2024, if no emergency days are used.  
 
Roll Call: Members Karagozian, Alper, Popielarczyk, Thannert, Torres, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 
-A motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member Thannert to approve the 
resignation of Anahys Gonzalez effective April 15, 2024. 
 
Roll Call: Members Karagozian, Alper, Popielarczyk, Thannert, Torres, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 



Old Business 
None 
 
New Business 
None 
 
Audience To Visitors 
 
The following community member made a statement: 
Amber Gonzalez 
 
Motion for Closed Session 
 
At 8:25 p.m. a motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member Thannert to 
go to closed session for the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline,  performance, 
or dismissal of specific employees, specific individuals who serve as independent contractors in 
a  park, recreational or educational setting, or a specific volunteer of the public body or legal 
counsel for the public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged against an 
employee, a specific individual who serves as an independent contractor in a park, recreational, 
or educational setting, or a volunteer of the public body or against legal counsel for the public 
body to determine its validity. However, a meeting to consider an increase in compensation to a 
specific employee of a public body that is subject the Local Government Wage Increase 
Transparency Act may not be closed and shall be open to the public and posted and held in 
accordance with this Act. 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1). 
 
Roll Call: Members Karagozian, Alper, Thannert, Popielarczyk, Torres, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 
Return to Open Session 
 
At 8:50 p.m., a motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member Alper to 
return to open session. 
 
Roll Call: Members Alper, Karagozian, Thannert, Torres, Popielarczyk, and Wilson voted aye. 
Nays none. The motion carried. 
 
Adjournment 
 
At 8:51 p.m., a motion was made by Member Karagozian and seconded by Member 
Popielarczyk to adjourn the meeting. All members were in favor. 
 
 
Approved by: 
 
_________________________________                                _____________________________ 
President          Secretary 





Niles Township District for Special Education
Board Brief

April 11, 2024

Call to Order
Governing Board President Chao called the meeting to order at 6:02 P.M.

Pledge of Allegiance
The Governing Board recited the Pledge.

Audience to Visitor
None

Video
Mrs. Kendrick presented a video on the NTDSE classrooms in District 73.

Approval of Consent Agenda
The Governing Board approved the following:
Minutes of:

● Open Session from March 14, 2024
● Closed Session from March 14, 2024
● Personnel Report
● Accounts Payable for March 31, 2024
● Embrace Contracts (EmbraceEVAL, Behavior Incident Reporting, Embrace504, Embrace IEP)

Administrative Reports:
Executive Director
Mrs. Kendrick reported on the following:

● NTDSE strategic plan update
● A legislative update on Bill 3606, Bill 2721, and the Paid Leave Ordinance
● Partnerships with Oakton College and UIC
● Fundraising for the Niles Township Community Clothing Closet

Director’s Report -Mrs. Hartranft
● Students are participating in the IAR or DLM state testing.
● ACCESS testing was completed in February.
● CFC will be on site on April 22nd to offer students a Star Lab Experience
● The Raptors basketball team took 2nd place in the State Special Olympics Basketball Competition.
● ESY registration began after spring break.

Principal’s Report - Mrs. Perry
● Spoke about the relationship and collaboration with the MCC and North Shore Transit
● D219 offered NTDSE a classroom at Niles West for the 2024-25 school year

Supervisor’s Report - Mrs. Arad
● Job fair at Niles North
● D211 senior job fair at Schaumburg High School
● Upcoming Professional Learning includes Pragmatic Language for SLPs, Mental Health First Aid, and I

Love U Guys Training.
Technology Report - Mr. Singh

● Finalized a website vendor. Parent Square was chosen.



Finance/Facilities Report
Ms. Gavin reported on the following:

● The Committee reviewed Accounts Payable.
● The team is working with Nicholas and Tria on pending issues.
● EBC rates for the 2024-25 school year
● Financials will be sent to member districts on April 15th.

Policy Report
A new policy will be discussed under Information/Discussion.

CFC
None

Information/Discussion
● Mrs. Kendrick discussed a new policy on audio recordings of student-related meetings.
● Ms. Gavin discussed new EBC rates.

Information/Discussion/Action Items
The Governing Board approved the following:

● The 2024-25 staffing proposal, as presented
● The ESY proposals for the Molloy Education Center and Todd Hall, District 74

Communications
Mrs. Kendrick stated she has many good candidates for NTDSE’s open positions. She shared enrollment data
and staff recognition submissions.

Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 6:45 P.M.

Calendar Notes
May 9, 2024 - Finance Committee Meeting - 5:00 P.M. - NTDSE Administrative Center
May 9, 2024 - Governing Board Meeting - 6:00 P.M. - NTDSE Administrative Center

Board Brief, April 11, 2024 Page 2



 

Informational Item A 
 
 
 
To:   The Board of Education 

 
From:  Matthew Condon, Ed. S. 
 
Re: Enrollment Report 
 
Date:    May 20, 2024 
 
 
The enrollment report as of April 30, 2024  is attached.   



 Number of Students by Teacher and Grade 2023-2024
04/30/2024

Grade Teacher Total Grade Teacher Total Grade Teacher Total
K Cusella AM 14 3 Faubert 24 6 Brody 24
K Heymann AM 14 3 Nelson 23 6 Davlin 22
K Heymann PM 17 3 Schwab 26 6 Levin 25
K Luksa AM 15 3 Starwalt 22 6 Schroeder 23
K Luksa PM 17   
K Cusella EDK * 8 3rd Grade Total 95 6th Grade Total 94
Kindergarten Total 77 6th Day 93 Prev month 94 6th Day 93 Prev month 95

6th Day 74 Prev month 77

1 Connelly 22 4 DiFronzo 23 7 Farbman 21
1 Girioni 21 4 Esp 24 7 Katz 21
1 Hansen 18 4 Lucci 24 7 Lazar 20
1 Melnick 21 4 Trail 24 7 Lerner 26
First Grade Total 82 4th Grade Total 95 7 Oats 19

6th Day 82 Prev month 82 6th Day 94 Prev month 96 7th Grade Total 107
6th Day 105 Prev month 106

2 Botten 19 5 Cogan  22 8 Friman 21
2 Frake 21 5 Nolan 23 8 Kochman 19
2 Reynolds 21 5 Oles 23 8 Mazukelli 20
2 Thanas 21 5 Reich 22 8 Pape 19

Second Grade Total 82 5th Grade Total 90 8 Rice 21
6th Day 80 Prev month 81 6th Day 88 Prev month 90 8th Grade Total 100

6th Day 96 Prev month 99

Blended AM 16 Total
Instructional AM 6 PreK-5 572
Blended PM (2 classes) 29 6-8 301
NTDSE D70 ** 10 PreK-8 873
NTDSE non D70 ** 2 TOTAL (incl. D70 NTDSE) 883
*students already counted in AM class 
** not included in classrom totals



Informational Item B 
 
 
 
To:   The Board of Education 

 
From:  Matthew Condon, Ed. S. 
 
Re: Lunchroom Report for 2023-2024 
 
Date:   May 20, 2024 
 
 
Enclosed is the monthly lunchroom report for the 2023-2024 school year. 
 



MORTON GROVE DISTRICT 70
STUDENT LUNCH COUNT

STUDENT MAY/
ENROLLMENT YEAR PRICE AUG/SEP* OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MARCH APRIL JUNE

767 01-02 1.85$      8129 5975 5306 4571 5025 5362 4134 4733 4599
779 02-03 2.00$      5034 7392 6647 4005 4546 4069 3846 4578 6047
716 03-04 2.00$      5542 4329 3020 3337 4071 3870 4160 4437 4942
777 04-05 2.00$      6927 5279 4426 3560 4976 4976 4605 5051 5357
765 05-06 2.00$      4834 4792 4370 4323 4724 4443 4334 4616 6283
789 06-07 2.25$      5930 4491 3120 3745 4165 3964 3814 4811 5469
812 07-08 2.25$      6010 6817 5318 4525 5686 5134 4537 6451 7049
819 08-09 2.35$      6792 6509 4251 4156 5827 4870 5070 5846 7472
796 09-10 2.35$      5958 5216 3712 3558 4768 4379 5113 4460 5925
821 10-11 2.35$      5220 4796 3892 2905 4861 4230 3779 4177 6232
832 11-12 2.50$      5786 4531 3955 3977 3533 4948 3398 4281 5037
858 12-13 2.50$      7623 6750 5405 4744 5859 5358 4603 6085 6823
853 13-14 2.60$      5935 6609 4799 4828 4677 5409 4855 5965 7221
857 14-15 2.65$      8189 6522 4189 4535 5140 4884 5169 5923 6909
850 15-16 2.65$      6227 6141 4529 4099 5674 5426 5462 5765 7904
855 16-17 2.75$      6956 4825 4534 4855 4651 5478 4436 5278 7601
860 17-18 2.85$      7556 6910 5639 5232 5586 5773 5778 6783 7180
890 18-19 2.90$      8081 7815 5659 5444 5736 6993 5911 7405 8692
877 19-20 3.00$      8309 7908 5096 5573 6979 7094 3738
845 20-21 3.05$      1029 2336 1335 814 1368 2700 3004 3034 3425
854 21-22 Free 8072 8014 6410 5404 7760 8234 8249 7660 9017
898 22-23 3.30$      6143 5385 5048 4497 4895 6245 5858 5506 7476
871 23-24 3.55$      8703 6584 5111 4838 4905 6804 5129 6485

MONTHLY
AVERAGES 6478 5910 4599 4240 5018 5245 4738 5424 6508

*Starting in 14-15 the total combines August & September
2502 is for Aug 2023 only, not Sept 2023



 

Informational Item C 
 
 
 
To:   The Board of Education 

 
From:  Matthew Condon, Ed. S. 
 
Re: FOIA Report 
 
Date:   May 20, 2024 
 
What have been the most recent Freedom of Information Act requests since the last report 
to the Board of Education? 
 
Policy Reference:  2:250 – Access to District’s Public Records 
 
Description:  Included are the most recent FOIA request. Please know the District has 
responded appropriately for all requests or is in the process of responding.  
 
Good Morning, 
My name is Bo Kim and I work for UnionBids.com 
I am looking for Bid Results/Tabulations or Award for: 
 
3/14/2024 Morton Grove School District No. 70-Mechanical Equipment and Installation 
(Cook County) STR Project Number: 23034.03 
 
This information is being requeted for Commercial purposes. 
 
If you would please have these results emailed tome I would appreciate it very much. 
 
Email: bkim95437@gmail.com 
Thank you for your time. 
Bo Kim 
 
UnionBids.com 
P.O. Box 3533 
Peoria, IL 61612 
 
REQUEST – received via email on April 5, 2024 from Bo Kim at 
bkim95437@gmail.com 
 
RESPONSE – Sent via email on April 5, 2024. 
 
RECOMMENDATION – No action is needed from the Board. 
 



Action  Item A 
 
 
 
To:   The Board of Education 

 
From:  Matthew Condon, Ed. S. 
 
Re: Policy Review Second Reading and Approval  
 
Date:   May 20, 2024 
 
In April, the Board completed the first reading of the attached policies.  These policies 
were recommended by the PRESS service and were reviewed by the Policy Committee.  
Also included is a summary of the policies and the potential impact of each. 
 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education approve the recommendations made by the Policy 
Committee for adoption.   



































































 
Action Item B 

 
To:   The Board of Education 

 
From:  Erin Majchrowski, CSBO 
 
Re: 2024-2025 Fee Recommendations 
 
Date:   May 20, 2024 
 
It is typical practice for the Board of Education to approve fees for the coming year on an annual 
basis.  Below is a chart showing the current fees for 2023-24 and the proposed fees for 2024-25.   
 
Fee 23-24 Actual 24-25 Proposed Who pays (which grades) 

Preschool Registration $3,000.00 $3,000.00 PreK 
 Half- Day Kindergarten 
Registration $75.00 $75.00 Kindergarten 
EDK-8th Grade 
Registration $150.00 $150.00 EDK-8th Grades ($450 max per family) 

PE Lock $7.00 $10.00 6th-8th Grades 

iPad Fee 
$30.00 (1st – 3rd) 
$50.00 (4th – 8th) 

$30.00 (1st – 3rd) 
$50.00 (4th – 8th) 1st-8th Grades 

Lunch $3.55 $3.80 Optional Purchase 

Milk $0.50 $0.50 Optional Purchase 

Hallway Locker Lock $7.00 $10.00 6th-8th Grades 

Graduation $50.00 $60.00 8th Grade  

PE Uniform - Shirt $7.00 $7.00 6th-8th Grades 

PE Uniform - Shorts $13.00 $13.00 6th-8th Grades 
PE – Heart Rate Monitor 
Strap $15.00 $20.00 6th-8th Grades 
 
 
The changes to fees for FY25 include lunches, the heart rate monitor straps, locks, and the 
graduation fee. The cost of the locks and heart rate monitor straps increased, so the fees were 
increased accordingly. The cost of supplies needed for graduation also increased, so the fees 
were increased to reflect the updated costs. The cost of lunch is determined through the Paid 
Lunch Equity tool, which is required by the National School Lunch Program. The increase is 
largely tied to the high CPI.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
Move that the Board of Education approve the fees as outlined in the above chart for the 2024-
2025 school year. 



Action Item C 
 
 
To: The Board of Education 
 
From: Nikki Kerr and Erin Majchrowski 
 
Re: Consolidated District Plan 
 
Date: May 20, 2024 
 
The Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) requires that each school board approve a 
Consolidated District Plan, which was designed to consolidate and streamline federal grant 
applications to reduce the burden on grantees and support holistic service to students. The 
Consolidated District Plan allows grantees to answer one set of planning questions to meet 
the requirements for the federal formula grants. Morton Grove School District 70 qualified 
for the grants listed below: 
 

• Title I, Part A – Improving Academic Achievement 
• Title II, Part A – Preparing, Training, and Recruiting High-Quality Teachers, 

Principals, and Other School Leaders 
• Title III – Language Instruction Educational Program  
• Title IV, Part A – Student Support and Academic Enrichment 
• IDEA Part B Flow-Through 
• IDEA Part B Preschool 

 
As part of the submission process, we are required to receive Board approval for the 
District’s plan. Our completed CDP contains the same information that we have been 
required to provide to both state and federal governments in the past in order to access 
grant funding. There are no new mandates in this process, other than a web-based 
interface that we are now required to use. Our district administration collaborated not only 
on the completion of this plan, but on how to provide the best services for all students in 
Morton Grove School District 70. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education approve the Consolidated District Plan for the 2024-
2025 school year.   
 
 
 



Close Printer Friendly Page

Applicant:  MORTON GROVE SD 70 County: Cook Consolidated District Plan
Application:  2024-2025 Consolidated District Plan - 00 
Cycle:  Original Application

Project Number:  25-CDP-00-05-016-0700-02

Printer-Friendly
Click to Return to Application Select

 

Overview

PROGRAM: Consolidated District Plan
PURPOSE: The District Plan shall be developed with timely and meaningful consultation with teachers,

principals, other school leaders, paraprofessionals, specialized instructional support personnel,
charter school leaders, administrators, other appropriate school personnel, and parents of
children in schools served under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) legislation, and as
appropriate, is coordinated with other programs under ESSA, the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act (20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq.), the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (20 U.S.C. 701 et seq.),
the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act (20 U.S.C.2301 et
seq.), the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (29 U.S.C. 3103 et seq.), the Head Start
Act (42 U.S.C. 9831 et seq.), the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 11301 et
seq.), the Adult Education and Family Literacy Act (29 U.S.C. 3271 et seq.), and other Acts as
appropriate.

BOARD GOALS: • Student Learning:  Every child will make significant academic gains each year, increasing their
knowledge, skills, and opportunities so they graduate equipped to pursue a successful future,
with the state paying special attention to addressing historic inequities.
• Learning Conditions:  All schools will receive the resources necessary to create safe, healthy,
and welcoming learning environments, and will be equipped to meet the unique academic and
social and emotional needs of each and every child.
• Elevating Educators:  Illinois’ diverse student population will have educators who are prepared
through multiple pathways and are supported in and celebrated for their efforts to provide each
and every child an education that meets their needs.

FY 2025 Title I, Part A - Improving Basic Programs
Included Title I, Part A - School Improvement Part 1003
Programs: Title I, Part D - Delinquent

Title I, Part D - Neglected
Title I, Part D - State Neglected/Delinquent
Title II, Part A - Preparing, Training, and Recruiting High-Quality Teachers, Principals, and Other
School Leaders
Title III - Language Instruction Educational Program (LIEP)
Title III - Immigrant Student Education Program (ISEP)
EL - Bilingual Service Plan (BSP)
Title IV, Part A - Student Support and Academic Enrichment
Title V, Part B - Rural and Low Income Schools
IDEA, Part B - Flow-Through
IDEA, Part B - Preschool
Foster Care Transportation Plan

LEGISLATION: Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
Rehabilitation Act
Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act
Head Start Act
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

5/15/24, 11:50 AM Grant Application

https://apps.isbe.net/eGrant_Web/ApplicationShell.aspx?DisplayName=Overview 1/2

https://apps.isbe.net/eGrant_Web/StaticPages/ApplicationSelect.aspx
https://www2.ed.gov/documents/essa-act-of-1965.pdf
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter33&edition=prelim
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/speced/reg/narrative.html
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/Perkins-V-Final-Legislation.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/policy/head-start-act
https://nche.ed.gov/legislation/mckinney-vento/


Adult Education and Family Literacy Act
105 ILCS 5/Illinois School Code Article 14C. Transitional Bilingual Education
23 Illinois Administrative Code 228 Transitional Bilingual Education

DUE DATE: District plans must be submitted to the Illinois State Board of Education and approved before
any FY 2025 grant applications for included programs can be approved.
Submission by April 1 is recommended.

DURATION: The District Plan was submitted initially for the school year 2024-2025 and must be updated
annually thereafter.

AMENDMENTS: Each Local Education Agency (LEA) shall periodically review and, as necessary, revise the plan
throughout the year. Plan amendments may necessitate amendment of the associated grant
application(s) as well.

INSTRUCTIONS: Instructions in PDF format
COMMON

ABBREVIATIONS:
ESSA - Every Student Succeeds Act (also referenced as the Elementary and Secondary
Education Act [ESEA] of 1965 as Amended)
IDEA - Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
ISBE - Illinois State Board of Education
LEA - Local Educational Agency
LIEP - Language Instruction Educational Program
SEA - State Education Agency
BSP - Bilingual Service Plan

5/15/24, 11:50 AM Grant Application

https://apps.isbe.net/eGrant_Web/ApplicationShell.aspx?DisplayName=Overview 2/2

https://aefla.ed.gov/
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt.+14C&ActID=1005&ChapterID=17&SeqStart=123900000&SeqEnd=125400000
https://www.isbe.net/Documents/228ARK.pdf
https://www.isbe.net/FTPFiles/2022-ConsolPlanInstructions.pdf


Action Item D 
 
 
To: The Board of Education 
 
From: Erin Majchrowski, CSBO 
 
Re: Membership in the Illinois Energy Consortium 
 
Date: May 20, 2024 
 
The Illinois Energy Consortium (IEC) is a not-for-profit initiative sponsored by IASA, IASB 
and IASBO that includes over 250 school districts. The IEC provides cost savings to districts 
on their natural gas and electric costs through contract management and administration as 
well as aggregate purchasing power. The resolutions to join the IEC natural gas and electric 
programs are included in the Board Packet. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education approve the resolution to join the Illinois Energy 
Consortium for natural gas and electricity. 
 
 
 



 

 
Resolution Authorizing Membership in the IEC May 15, 2024 
 

 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING MEMBERSHIP IN THE ILLINOIS ENERGY CONSORTIUM 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Education of, Morton Grove School District 70, in accordance with 
ILCS 105 (Illinois School Code) Section 5/10.20.21 (a), has authority to award all contracts for 
purchase of supplies and materials; and 
 
WHEREAS Section 5/10-20.21 (ix) of the Illinois School Code specifically exempts districts from the 
requirements of competitive bidding for contracts for the purchase of natural gas when the average 
historical cost is less than that offered by a public utility; and 
 
WHEREAS, the average historical cost to purchase natural gas through the Illinois Energy 
Consortium, Inc., An Illinois Not-For-Profit Corporation (the “IEC”) is less than that offered by a public 
utility; and 
 
WHEREAS, the costs to individually purchase and administrate the procurement and delivery of 
natural gas could constitute a significant economic burden on the resources of the school district; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board of Education to reduce the economic burden on the 
resources of the school district by increasing efficiency and reducing the administrative costs of the 
district and to respond to the exigencies of the day to day of operations in accordance with the 
procurement process as established by the Illinois School Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, the IEC operates a Natural Gas Pool for Illinois educational institutions and other  
public agencies, as well as not-for-profit organizations in the State of Illinois; and  
 
WHEREAS, the IEC recognizes the economic and financial savings and benefits to be gained by 
establishing a state wide natural gas purchasing and delivery consortium; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Education of, Morton Grove School 
District 70 that it authorizes the Superintendent of Schools, or his or her designee, to enter into a 
Membership Participation Agreement (Exhibit A) on its behalf with the Illinois Energy Consortium for 
the provision of natural gas supply as specified within the agreement. 
 
 
Approved this __ day of ______________,  20_____. 
 
Ayes: 
 
 
Nays:  
 
 
________________________________________  
President 
 
________________________________________  
Secretary 
 



 

 
Resolution Authorizing Membership in the IEC February 1, 2023 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING MEMBERSHIP IN THE ILLINOIS ENERGY CONSORTIUM 
 
WHEREAS the Board of Education of, __________________________________, in 
accordance with ILCS 105 (Illinois School Code) Section 5/10.20.21 (a), has authority to award 
all contracts for purchase of supplies and materials; and 
 
WHEREAS Section 5/1020.21 (ix) of the Illinois School Code specifically exempts districts from 
the requirements of competitive bidding for contracts for the purchase of electricity when the 
average historical cost is less than that offered by a public utility; and 
 
WHEREAS the average historical cost to purchase electricity through the Illinois Energy 
Consortium Powered by Future Green (IEC-FG), An Illinois Not-For-Profit Corporation (the “IEC-FG”) 
is less than that offered by a public utility; and 
 
WHEREAS the costs to individually purchase and administrate the procurement and delivery of 
electricity could constitute a significant economic burden on the resources of the school district; 
and 
 
WHEREAS it is the desire of the Board of Education to reduce the economic burden on the 
resources of the school district by increasing efficiency and reducing the administrative costs of 
the district and to respond to the exigencies of the day to day of operations in accordance with 
the procurement process as established by the Illinois School Code; and  
 
WHEREAS the IEC-FG operates an electricity Pool for Illinois educational institutions and other  
public agencies, as well as not-for-profit organizations in the State of Illinois; and  
 
WHEREAS the IEC-FG recognizes the economic and financial savings and benefits to be gained 
by establishing a statewide electricity purchasing and delivery consortium; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Education of, Morton Grove School 
District 70 that it authorizes the Superintendent of Schools, or his or her designee, to enter into 
a Membership Participation Agreement (Exhibit A) on its behalf with the Illinois Energy 
Consortium Powered by Future Green for the provision of electricity supply as specified within the 
agreement. 
 
 
Approved this __ day of ______________, 20_____.
 
Ayes: 
 
 
Nays:  
 
 
________________________________________  
President 
 
________________________________________  
Secretary 
 



Action  Item E 
 
 
 
To:   The Board of Education 

 
From:  Matthew Condon, Ed. S. 
 
Re: 2024-2025 Board Meeting Dates Schedule  
 
Date:   May 20, 2024 
 
Each year the Board adopts the schedule of meeting dates. Attached are proposed dates to 
meet. In general, the Board meets on the third Monday of each month. Due to school 
holidays, January and February Board meetings dates are adjusted to accommodate the 
school calendar. 
 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education approve the proposed dates for future Board 
meetings.   



MORTON GROVE SCHOOL DISTRICT 70 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

SCHEDULE OF BOARD MEETINGS 
2024 – 2025 

 
 

Monday, July 15, 2024 
 

Monday, August 19, 2024 
 

Monday, September 16, 2024 
 

Monday, October 21, 2024 
 

Monday, November 18, 2024 
 

Monday, December 16, 2024 
 

Tuesday, January 21, 2025 
 

Tuesday, February 18, 2025 
 

Monday, March 17, 2025 
 

Monday, April 21, 2025 
 

Monday, May 19, 2025 
 

Monday, June 16, 2025 
 



Action Item F 
 
 
To:      The Board of Education 
 
From:  Matthew Condon 
 
Re:      Recommendation to accept employee retirement 
  
Date:   May 20, 2024 
 
Georgia Senensky has submitted her request to retire effective May 29, 2024. Ms. Senensky has 
been the Food Service Director. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education approve the resignation of Georgia Senensky, effective May 
29, 2024, if no emergency days are used.  
 
 
.  
 
 
 





Action Item G 
 
 
To:      The Board of Education 
 
From:  Matthew Condon 
 
Re:      Approval of Leave of Absence 
  
Date:   May 20, 2024 
 
Katie McBrien has submitted a letter requesting a leave of absence for the 2024-2025 school 
year. Katie is currently a sixth grade learning behavior specialist. Katie has not applied for a 
leave in the past. She will return for the start of the 2025-2026 school year. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education accept Katie McBrien’s leave of absence request as 
presented. 
.  
 
 
 





Action Item H 
 
 
To:      The Board of Education 
 
From:  Matthew Condon 
 
Re:      Recommendation to accept employee resignation 
  
Date:   May 20,, 2024 
 
Katherine Stief has submitted her letter of resignation. Ms. Stief has worked at Park View as a 
school psychologist. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education approve the resignation of Katherine Stief, effective May 30, 
2024, if no emergency days are used. 
 
 
.  
 
 
 





Action Item I 
 
 
To:      The Board of Education 
 
From:  Matthew Condon 
 
Re:      Recommendation to accept employee resignation 
  
Date:   May 20,, 2024 
 
Deonna Ford has submitted her letter of resignation. Ms. Ford has worked at Park View as a 
recess supervisor. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education approve the resignation of Deonna Ford, effective April 11, 
2024. 
 
 
.  
 
 
 



Action  Item J 
 
 
 
To:   The Board of Education 

 
From:  Matthew Condon, Ed. S. 
 
Re: Approval of New Hire- Teacher 
 
Date:   May 20, 2024 
 
Amanda Behles is recommended to the Board of Education for the role of middle school 
math teacher. This is a replacement position. 
 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education approve the hiring of Amanda Behles for the 2024-
2025 school year.   



Action  Item K 
 
 
 
To:   The Board of Education 

 
From:  Matthew Condon, Ed. S. 
 
Re: Approval of New Hire- Teacher 
 
Date:   May 20, 2024 
 
Konstantina (Tina) Callas is recommended to the Board of Education for the role of  
kindergarten teacher. This is a replacement position. 
 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education approve the hiring of Konstantina Callas for the 
2024-2025 school year.   



Action  Item L 
 
 
 
To:   The Board of Education 

 
From:  Matthew Condon, Ed. S. 
 
Re: Approval of New Hire- Teacher 
 
Date:   May 20, 2024 
 
Maria Ward is recommended to the Board of Education for the role of  4th grade teacher. 
This is a replacement position. 
 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education approve the hiring of Maria Ward for the 2024-2025 
school year.   



Action  Item M 
 
 
 
To:   The Board of Education 

 
From:  Matthew Condon, Ed. S. 
 
Re: Approval of New Hire- Teacher 
 
Date:   May 20, 2024 
 
Nicole Reyes is recommended to the Board of Education for the role EL teacher. This is 
a replacement position. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education approve the hiring Nicole Reyes for the 2024-2025 
school year. 



Action  Item N 
 
 
 
To:   The Board of Education 

 
From:  Matthew Condon, Ed. S. 
 
Re: Approval of New Hire- Teacher 
 
Date:   May 20, 2024 
 
Julia Loffredo is recommended to the Board of Education for the role LBS resource 
teacher. This is a replacement position. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move that the Board of Education approve the hiring Julia Loffredo for the 2024-2025 
school year. 


